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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amendment to an
existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, Dover,
NH, Vendor #177200, by increasing the price limitation by $ 176,629 from $2,534,068 to $2,710,697
using additional Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) funds made available
through the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (lIJA) and from remaining regular program year
funds, both from the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families, effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 30,2025.
There is no time extension being requested for this contract. The original contract was approved by
Governor and Executive Council on September 20, 2023, Item #87. 100% Federal Funds

Funding is available in the following account, contingent upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the operating budget, as follows:

New Hampshire Department of Energv. Fuel Assistance FY2025

02-52-52-520510-33540000-074-500587

Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $ 176,629

EXPLANATION

This is an amendment to a contract is SOLE SOURCE because the historical performance of the
Community Action Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
Program (LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, and the synergies that benefit the
FAP as a result of the five statewide CAAs' implementation of several other federal assistance
programs as well as the infrastructure that is already in place to deliver LIHEAP (also known as Fuel
Assistance Program or FAP) services. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract with the
five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than three
decades. The CAAs work closely with the Department's FAP Administrator in the implementation of
the program.
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This amendment adds additional funding which was received for Program Year 24 (PY24) to existing
contracts and makes them available to the Community Action Agencies until the contract ends on
September 30, 2025, making them available for the next winter heating season. Demand and benefit
amounts have varied across the CAAs and these amendments seek to position these additional funds
to the CAAs that have experienced the most need.

In the event that Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to
support this contract.

Respectfully si^bqiitted,

s.

Jared S. Chicoine

Commissioner



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AMENDMENT

This Amendment is between the State ofNew Hampshire Department of Energy, 21
South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the
"State") and Community Action Partnership of StrafTord County, 577 Central Avenue, Suite 10,
PO Box 160, Dover, Strafford County, NH 03820 (hereinafter the "Contractor").

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), as approved by
Governor and Council on September 20, 2023, Item #87, the Contractor has agreed to provide
certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of
payment by the State of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1) Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Price Limitation: Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current sum of $2,534,068 and inserting in place thereof the total sum
of $2,710,697.

B) Exhibit C - Pavmcnt Terms: Amend Exhibit C, first paragraph by striking
the current sum of $2,534,068 and inserting in place thereof the total sum
of $2.710,697.

C) Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$226,193 and inserting for administrative costs $242,253.

D) Amend Exhibit C, second paragraph by striking the current sum of
$2,222,675 and inserting for program costs $2,383,244.

2) Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by
the Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereiinder

Grants: 240INHL1EA; Award Date: 04/22/24 Contractor Initials:
CFDA: 93.568 Date:
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shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth in the Agreement as U existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year
written below.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Deiiirtment of Ent

Date: By:
red S. Chicoine, Commissioner

immunity Action Partnership of Strafford County

(Name & Title of Person Authorized to Sign)

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

7/18/2024
Date: By:

Assistant Attorney General

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on 2024.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By: ^

Title:

Grents; 240INHLIEA; Award Date: 04/22/24 Contractor Initials:
CFDA:93.56S Date:
Community Action Partnenhip of Strafford County PafceZ'of



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretar>' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMLfNlTY ACTION

PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 25. 1965. 1 further certify- that all fees and documents required by the Secretan.' of State's office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65583

Certificate Number: 0006664113

ai

Ik

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this lOth day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretar\' of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

hereby certify that:

1. 1 am duly elected Secretary of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County.

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called, and
held on November 15, 2023, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Betsey Andrews Parker, CEO and Leslie Craigen, CFO are duly authorized on behalf of Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and
any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and
other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be
desirable or necessary to affect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy the positlon(s) indicated and that they have lull authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: C./Co

Signature of Elected Officer

.  Name: //g/, S

Title:

Rev. 03/24/20



AC^RO CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MMrt)DrYYYY>

07/01/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S) AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementis)

PRODUCER

CGI Insurance, Inc.

5 Dartmouth Drive

Auburn NH 03032

SSme*" TeriDa^s
rK^o.E.«: (877)562-8954 PUCNOI- (866)574-2443
AMRESS: 'CDavistgCGIBusinesslnsurance.com

INSURERtSI AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC »

INSURER A Hanover insurance Company 22292
INSURED

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

DBA; Stratford CAP

577 Central St. Ste 10

Dover 03820

INSURER B Eastern Alliance 10724

INSURER C Philadelphia Indemnity 23850

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

T1

IN

0

E

HIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
DICATED, NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
ERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
kCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE rzHlliW: POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF

IMM/OOrVYYYl
t»OLieve)(p
IMM/DO/YYYYI LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

£  1 X| OCCUR
S1M

ZHVA192135 11 07/01/2024 07/01/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE j 1.000.000

1 CLAIMS-MAC UAMAUb iUHLNTED
PREMISES lEe ocoirmncel , 100.000

X Abuse Lialjility
MEO E)^ <Anv one person) , 10.000

PERSONAL S ADV INJURY 5 1.000.000
GET V AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY Q [3 LOC
OTHER:

GENERAL AGGREGATE j 3.000.000

PRODUCTS • COMPfOP AGG j  Included

ProfessionBl Liability S 1,000.000

A

AU1

X

X

OMOeiLE LIABILITY

1  1

AWVA156930 07/01/2024 07/01/2025

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Es scddentl

S 1,000.000

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY X

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Per person) s

BODILY INJURY (Per accMent) %

PROPERTY GamaG^
(Per scddeni) i

Uninsured motorist S 1.000.000

A

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LU8

X OCCUR

CLAIMS4AA0E UHVA192136 07/01/2024 07/01/2025

£ACH~OcVuRR?NCE , 4.000.000

AGGREGATE J 4.000.000

DEO 1 XI RETENTION J ^ 1

8

WORKERS COWPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABIUTY y , „
ANY PROPRlETOR/PARTNER/EXECUnVE rTTl
OFFICERAIEMBER EXCLUDED?
(UandMory In NH) '
If yes. describe un^
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

NIA 01000011379-2024A 07/01/2024 07/01/2025

PER OTH-
^ STATUTE EH

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT , 1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE J 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT J 1,000.000

C
Directors & Officers

EPLI with Crime PHSD1807749-007 07/01/2024 07/01/2025

Aggregate

Per Claim

Crime Aggregate

58,000,000

$3,000,000

$1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Addlttonal R«mark« SctMdul*, m«y b« atuelMd If mor# »p*e« I* rcqulrvd)

Workers Compensation 3A State: NH

Slate of NH; NH Dept of Energy

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

21 South Fruit St. Ste 10
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord

1

NH 03301 DJ')d

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
e 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
V
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DEPUTY COMMISSIONER

Christopher J. Elms. Jr.

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

21 S. FruftSt. Suite 10
Conoord, N.H. 03301-2429

Td. (603)271-3670

FAX No. 271-1526

WebsHa:

www.energy/ih.gov

September 20, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1) Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into a SOLE
SOURCE contract Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (VC# 177200), Dover, NH,
in the amount of $2,534,068 for the Fuel Assistance Program effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval through September 30, 2025. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to stqTport this request are available in die following account in FY 2024 upon the availability
and continiasd appropriation of funds in the future operating budget:

NH Department of Energv. Fuel Assistance FY 2024
02-52-52-520510-33540000

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief $2,534,068

2) Further request authorization to advance Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
$261,852 from the above-referenced contract amount.

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Fuel Assistance Program (FAP), their outreach and
client service c^abilities, the synergies that benefit the FAP as a result of the five statewide
CAAs* implementation of several ofoer federal assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is
already in place to deliver FAP services. The Department proposes to continue to subcontract
with the five CAAs who have successfully provided FAP services at the local level for more than
three decades. The CAAs work closely with the Department's FAP Administrator in the
implementation of the program.

FAP is a statewide program, funded by a Federal Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(LIHEAP) Block Grant, and works to make home energy more affordable for income-qualified
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New Hampshire families, including those who are elderly or disabled. Program funds are
targeted to low income households with high energy burdens. The current maximum income
level is 60% of the State Median Income (SMI), which is $80,069 for a family of four. The
average FAP benefit during the last program year was $ 1,530. The program operates on an
October 1" to September 30*^ program year.

The proposed advance of funds will enable the CAA to operate the program between monthly
reimbursements from the State.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

espectfiiUy^bmitted,

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

tfaiiSS- Thjs tgreement tnd all of itj aitichments shall become public upon lubmisjlon to Coi'cnior tnd
Executive Council for approval. Any infonnaiion ihat is private, confidential or propriclaxy must
be clearly identified to the egency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

ACREeMcrn-
The State of New Mampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

Department ofEnergy

1.2 Slate Agency Address

21 S. FnilrSt., Ste. 10. Concord. NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

Community Action Ptutneiship of Straflbrd County
1.4 Contracior Address

577 Central Avenue. Suite 10. PO Box 160, Dover, NH 03820

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603)516.8130

1.6 Account Unit and Class

33540000-074

1.7 Completion Date
Scpicmber 30, 2025

1.8 Price Limitation

S2.534.068

1 .y Contracting Officer for State Agency
Joshua W. Elliott, Director. Policy and Programs Division

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
(603)271.6003

1. II Contractor Signati^e 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Sigtuiiory

Betsey Andrews Parker, Executive Director

1.13 • State Agency Sfguture 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Jarcd S. Chicoinc, Commissioner

' ■ 7 E>«P«nfnent of Administration. Division of Penonnel (if applicable)

If Director, On:
1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form. Substance and Execution) (ifapplicahle)

1.17--1tppfoval by the Governor and Executive Council (if app(icable)

GAC Item number: GAC Meeting Date.

LIHEAP24 CAPSC

Award 0 24OINHLIEA

CFDA#93.568
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block I.I ("Stale"),
engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or both,
identified and more particularly described in the attached EXHIBIT B
which is incorporate herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agrtemeni to the contrary,
and subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire, if applicable, this Agreement, and all
obligations of the parties hereunder. shall become eflcciive on tlte date
the Governor and Executive CoutKil approve this Agreement, unless
no such approval Is required, In which case the Agreement shall
become cfTeciive on the dale the Agreement is signed by the State
Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effcciive Dale").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the EfTcciive
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the Effective
Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Conuacior, and in the
event that this Agreement does not become effective, the State shall
have no liability to the Contractor, including without limitation, any
obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services
performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete al) Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all
obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation, the
continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availabiliry and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or temiination of
appropriated fiinds by any state or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the appropriation
or availabilicy of fiirKJing for this Agreement and the Scope for
Services provided in EXHIBfT B. in whole or in part, the State shall
have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available,
if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or terminate the Services
under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice
of such reduction or termination. The State shall not be required to
transfer funds from any other account or source to the Account
identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that Account arc reduced
or unavailable.

5. CONTIUCT PRICE/PRICE LIMrTATION/ PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment arc
identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C which is
incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the contrary,
and notwithstanding unexpected circumsunces. in no event shall the
tola) of all payments authorized, or actually made hereunder, exceed
the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The payment by the State
of the contract price shall be the only and the complete reimbursement
to the Contractor for all expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the
Contractor in the performance hereof, and shall be the only and the
complete compensation to the Contractor for the Services.
5.3 The State reservcs the right to oflsei from any amounts otherwise
payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those liquidated

amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80;7 through RSA 80:7-c
or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the lota! fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the Slate and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the Sute.

6. compliance by CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws, regulatioiis. and orders
of federal, state, county or municipal authorities which impose any
obligation or duty upon the Contractor, including, but not limited to.
civil fights and ,equal employment oppominity laws and the
Governor's order on Respect and Civility in the Workplace. Executive
order 2020-01. In addition, ifihis Agreement is funded in any part by
monies of the United States, the Comracior shall comply with all
federal executive orders, rules, regulations and stamtcs, and with any
rules, regulations and guidelines as the State or the United States issue
to implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply with
al) applicable intellectual property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against entployees or applicants for employntent because
of age, sex. sexual orientation, race, color, marital status, physical or
mental disability, religious creed, national origin, gender identity, or
gender expression, and will take alTinnativc action to prevent such
discrimination, unless exempt by state or federal law. The Contractor
shall ensure any subcontractors comply with these nondiscrimination
requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks, or
other unlawfiil or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States access
to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose
of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement aitd all rules,
regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms and
conditions of this.Agrccmcnt.

7. PERSONNEL.

7. 1 The Contractor shall at iis own expense provide all personnel
necessary ta perform the Services. The Contractor warrants thai all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized to
do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9. or any successor,
shall be the State's point of coniaci pcnaining to this Agrcerttcni
8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event of
Default");
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or pn schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder, and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of this
Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take
any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

LIHEAP24 CAPSC
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8.2.1 give the Contrtctor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of lime, thiny (30) calendar days from
the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, en'ective two (2) calendar days after giving
the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Defauh and suspending all payments to be made under this Agreement
and ordering that the portion of the contract price which would
otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from the date of
such notice until such lime as the Stale determines that the Contractor
has cured the Event of Dcfouit shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any Event
of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMTNATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole discretion,
terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in part, by thirty
(30) calendar days written-tMtice to (he Contractor that the State is
exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 in the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor shall,
at the Slate's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer, not later
than fifteen (IS) calendar days after the date of termination, a report
("Termination Report") describing in detail all Services performed,
and the contract price earned, to and including the date of lennination.
In addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen
(15) calendar days of notice of early termination, develop and submit
to (he State a transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHI P/DISCLOSliRE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean all
data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys,'maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings,
pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations,
computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda,
papers, and documents, all whether finished or unfinished.
10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the State,
or purchased with ftinds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the propcny of the State, and shall be retumcd to
the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any
reason.

10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91'A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

n. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of the
Slate. Neither the Cpntractor nor any of its officers, employees, agents
or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive any
benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments provided by the
Slate to its employees.

12. ASSICNMENTfDELECATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifieen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment; delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such assignment,
delegation, or other transfer shall be cfreciive without the written
consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
con.«itutc assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in which
a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct or indirect
owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting shares or similar
equity intercsta, or combined voting power of the Contractor, or (b) the
sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Contractor.
12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The Slate is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained in a
subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify, defend,
and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees from and
against all actions, claims, damages, demands, judgments, fines,
liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including, without limitation,
reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or relating to this Agreement
directly or indirectly arising from death, personal injury, property
damage, intellectual property infringement, or other claims asserted
against the Slate, its ofTlccrs, or employees caused by the acts or
omissions of negligence, reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by
the Contractor,, its employees, ogcnts, or subconlraciors. The State
shall not be liable for any cost.t incurred by the Contractor arising
under this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's
sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the State.
This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination of this
Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and continuously
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or assignee to
obtain and maintain in force, the following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
S1.000.000 per occurrence and S2,000.000 aggregate or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than 80%
of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy fomts and endorsements approved for use tn the State of New
Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued by
insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9. or any successor, a certificatefs) of insurance for all
insurance required under this Agreement. At the request of the
Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor shall provide
cenificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required
ufKler this Agreement. The certificatefs) of insurance and any renewals
thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by reference.
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IS. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing Jhis agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from, the
requirements of N.H. RSA' chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require any
subcontractor or assignee to secure and mainiain. payment of Workers'
Compensation in connection with activities which the person proposes
to undenakc pursuant to this Agreement. The Contractor shall fumish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or any successor, proof
of Woilters* Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA
chapter 281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not
be responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation premiums
or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor
or employee of Contractor, which might arise under applicable State
of New Hampshire Workers' Compensation laws in connection with
the performance of the Services under this Agreement,

1$. WAIVER OF BREACH. A Slate's failure to enforce its rights
with respea to any single or continuing breach ofthis Agreement shall
not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any such
rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other pany shall be
deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by
ccnificd iiuiil. posuge prepaid, in a United Slates Post Office
addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4.
herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or discharge
by thcG)ven>orand E.iccutive Council ofthc State of New Hampshire
unless no such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant
to State low, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF Law AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except where
the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The wording used
in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the parties to express their

mutual intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or in
favor of any party. '
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the breach
or alleged breach thereof, may nor be submitted to binding arbitration,
but must, instead, be brought and rtaintaincd in the Mcrrimack County
Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall have exclusive
jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of o conflict between the
terms of this P-37 form (as modified In EXHIBIT A) and any other
portion of this Agreement ittcluding ony attachments thereto, the terms
of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRJD PARTIES. This Agrecmcm is being entered into for the
sole benefit of the parties hereto, arid nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement arc for
reference puqwscs only, and the words contained therein shall in no
way be held to explain, modily. amplify or aid in the interpretation,
construction or meaning of the provisions of this Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT A arc incorporated herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along witli its
agents and afTiliaies. shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents nnd take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions ofthis Agreement and
give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERaBILITV. (n the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary
to any state or federal law. the remaining provisions of this Agreement
will remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
an original, constitutes ihc entire agreement and understanding
between the parties, and supersedes all prior agreements and
understandings with respect to the subject matter hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

1.;. On or before ihc date set forth in Block 1.7 of the General Provisions, the Contractor
shall deliver to the State an independent audit of the Contractor's entire agency by a
qualified independent auditor in good standing with the state and federal government.

2. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by contract or
grant number of all expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall
utilize a competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor at least every
four years.

3. The audit repon shall include o schedule of prior years' questioned co.sts along with an
Agency response to the current status of the prior years* questioned costs. Copies of all
0MB letters written as a result of audits shall be forwarded to New Hampshire
Department of Energy (NH DOE). The audit jhall be forwarded to NH DOE within one
month of the time of receipt by the Agency, accompanied by an action plan for each
finding or questioned cost.

4. Delete the following from paragraph 10 of the General Provisions: "The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to
those of any Final Report described in Exhibit A."

5. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost
principles detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

6. Program and financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Agency
for three years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report per 2 CFR
200.334 - Retention Requirements for Records and until all audit findings have been
resolved.

7. In accordance with Public Law 103-333, the "Departments of Labor, Health and Human
Services, and Education, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act of 1995," the
following provisions are applicable to this grant award:

a. Section 507: "Purchase of American -Made Equipment and Products - It is the
sense of the Congress that, to (he greatest extent practicable, all equipment and
products purchased with funds made available in this Act should be American-

made."

b. Section 508: "When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitations and other documents describing projects or programs funded in
whole or in part with federal money, all states receiving federal funds, including
but not limited to state and local governments and recipients of federal research
grants, shall clearly state (1) the percentage of the total costs of the program or
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project which will be financed with federal money, (2) the dollar amount of
federal funds for the project or program, and (3) the percentage and dollar amount
of the total costs of the project or program that will be financed by non
governmental sources."

8. CLOSE OLJT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests
shall be submitted to the State within 30 days of the completion date (Agreement Block
1.7).

9. ADVANCES. Advance funds must be used solely for appropriate Fuel Assistance
Program expenditures. Advance program funds are to be used only for Fuel Assistance
Program vendor payments. Ail Fuel Assistance Program payments, including Advance
program payments, must be transferred from the Community Action Agency's (CAA's)
general operating account into a specific Fuel Assistance Program account within 48
hours af^er being received electronically from the State. CAAs must isubmit the bank
account number of the designated bank account for the advance funds to NH DOE prior
to the electronic submission of the funds to the CAA. Unspent Advance program funds
must remain in the FAR dedicated account at all times and cannot be comingled with any
other CAA funds. CAAs are required to submit a complete electronic copy of the FAP-
dedicated bank account statement to NH DOE on e monthly basis.

10. This is not a Research and Development (R&D) award. The Department's indirect cost rate
is 10 percent. '
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Community Action Partnership of Sirafford County, hereinafter the Contractor agrees to provide
Fuel Assistance Program services to qualified low-income individuals and agrees to perform all
such services and other work necessary to operate the Program in accordance with the
requirements of this contract, the principles and objectives set forth in the Fuel Assistance
Program Procedures Manual, Information Memoranda, and other guidance as determined by NH
DOE.

Fuel Assistance Program (FAP) services will be defined to include the following categories;

1. Outreach, eligibility, determination, and certification of FAP applicants;

2. Payments directly to energy vendors:
a. Reimbursement for goods and services delivered
b. Lines of credit

c. Budget plan payments;

3. Payments directly to landlords via vouchers for renters who pay their energy costs as
undefined portions of their rent;

4. Payments directly to clients only when deemed appropriate and necessary as defined in
the Fuel Assistance Procedures Manual; and

5. Emergency Assistance in the form of reimbursements for goods or services delivered in
accordance with paragraphs 3 and 4 above.
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EXHIBIT C

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of the satisfactory performance of the services as determined by the State, the
State agrees to pay over to the Contractor the sum of $2,534,068 (which hereinafter is referred to
as the "Grant").

Upon the State's receipt of the 2024 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program grant from
the US Department of Health and Human Services, and Governor and Executive Council
approval, (he following funds will be authorized:

$226,193 for administration costs, of which $39,584 will be issued as a cash advance;
$2,222,675 for program costs, of which $222,268 will be issued as a cash advance;
$85,200 for Assurance 16.

The dates for this contract are upon Governor and Council approval through September 30, 2025.

Approval to obligate (Exhibit I) the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the New
Hampshire Department of Energy to the Contractor as the Federal funds become available.
Drawdowns from the balance of funds will be made to the Contractor only after written
documentation of cash need is submitted to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in

accordance with procedures established by the State as detailed in the Fuel Assistance Program
Procedures Manual.

The Contractor may use up to two percent (2%) of the funds allocated for program costs to pay
for program support expenses. Program support expenses will be defined in an Information
Memoranda issued by the New Hampshire Department of Energy.

CFDA Title: Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

CFDANo: 93.568

Award Name: Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

Federal Agency: Health & Human Services
Administration for Children and Families

OfTice of Community Services

LIHEAP24 CAPSC

Award H 2401NHLIEA Exhibits ̂  & C
CFDA#93.568 Contractor Initials

Date [
Page 4 of 4



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Contractor idcniiflcd in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 51*51 -5160 of the Drag-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41* U.S.C.
701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.1 1 and 1.12 of
the General Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151 -5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. l00.690,TitlcV, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 ctscq.). The January 31, 1989 regulations were
amended and published as Part II of the May 25. 1990 Federal Register (pages 21681 -21691), and require
certification by Contractor (and by inference sub-grantees and sub-contractors) prior to award that they will
maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that a Contractor (and by
inference sub-grantccs and sub-contractors) that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in
each federal fiscal year in lieu of cerTlficates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the
certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when '
the Agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension
of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or govemmcnt-widc suspension or dcbarmeni. Contractors
using this form should send it to:

Fuel Assistance Administrator, New Hampshire Department of Energy,
21 South Fruit St., Ste. 10. Concord, NH 03301

(A) The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drag-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be token against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:

(!) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) the Contractor's policy of maintaining a drag-free workplace;
(3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in

the workplace;

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(I) abide by the terms of the statement; and
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
ALTERNATIVE 1 - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS, conCd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

(e)

(0

(8)

(2) notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction;

Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the federal agency
has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under '
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an.cmployee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to participate saiisfaciorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implemeniaiion
of paragraphs (a), (b). (c). (d), (c). and (0-

(B) The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stale, rip code) (list each location)

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
577 Central Avenue, Suite 10, P.O. Box 160, [>ovcr. NH 03820

Check Q if there arc workplaces on file that arc not identified here.

frnmuMij ftrlM ̂ rMvpff
Contractor Name

Porkpr PfA
Name ana Title of Authorized Contractor Representative

Upon Governor and Council Approval through September 30. 2025
Otraffdcd period covered by this Certification

Contractor Representative Signature Date
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Coniraclor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of Section
319 of Public Law 101-121, Govemmcni wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352,
and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections i.ll and 1.12 of the General '
Provisions, execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
LIHEAP

Contract Period: Upon Governor and Council Approval through September 30. 2025

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

(1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
person for influencing or anempting to influence an officcr or employee of any agency, a member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection
with the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any
federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantcc or sub
contractor).

(2) If any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with this federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantcc or sub-contractor),
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying",
in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award document for
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-gr^ts, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipicnts shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for maWng or entering into this transaction
imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be
subject to a ci>^fvnalty of nortess than S10.000 and not more than S100,000 for each such failure.

C£0
Contractor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

forommihj khnn (hrhr^hip df. IhC^ni Anniu w. 2-
Contrattor Name Date /
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part"76 regarding Debarment, Suspension,
and Other Responsibility Matters, and funher agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in
Sections 1.1 1 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, execute the following Certification;

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial of
participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospcciivc participant shall submit an explanation
of why it cannot provide the certification. The ccrtificaiion or explanation will be considered in connection
with the NH Department of Energy's DOE) determination whether to enter into this transaction.
However, failure of the prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall
disqualify such person fVom participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in thisclause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when NH
DOE determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective primary
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the
federal goverrunent, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

(4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the NH DOE agency to whom
this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant leams that Its
cenification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

(5) TTie terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered transaction,"
"participant," "person," "primary covered transaction." "principal." "proposal," and "voluntarily excluded."
as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. Sec the attached definitions;

(6) The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should the proposed
covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH DOE.

(7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier
Covered Transactions," provided by NH DOE, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions
and in ell solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower
tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded from the
covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method
and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may. but is not
required to, check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in
order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a
participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary
course of business dealings.

(10) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
rransaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies
available to the federal government, NH DOE may terminate this transaction for cause or default.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERSPRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS, coDt'd

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other
Responsibility Matters • Primary Covered Transactions

(I) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;

(a) arc not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarmcnl. declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from coyered transactions by any federal department or agency:

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or locol)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or Slate antitrust statutes
or commission of embezzlement. thcA, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) arc not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
(federal, stale or local) transactions terminated for cause or default.

• (2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification.
such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, IneligibUity and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions

• (To Be Supplied lo Lower Tier Participants)

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as defined In
45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it arid its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will include this
clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tier Covered Transactions." without modification in all lower tier-covered transactions and in alt solicitations for
lower tier-covered transa'ctit

.. .. , no
Contractor RepreseniativeStgnaturc Contractor's Representative Title

of /gjrth
Contractor Name Date'
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor ideniified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections l.ll and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

.  By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with a!) applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

ictor Representative Signature Contractor's Representative Title

fdmrniniliJ Orim DtrlnPf^ip of. %afforH fmh f -17 ̂ Z 3
Corltractor Name Datfe
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION
Public Law 103-227, Part C

environmental tobacco smoke

Public Law 103227. Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro Children Act of 1994, requires
thai smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility routinely owned or leased or connected for by
an entity and used routinely or regularly for provision of hcalth. day care, education, or library services to children
under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs cither directly or through State or local
governments, by Federal grant, contract, loon, or loan guarantee.

The law docs not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by Medicare
or Medicard funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatienl drug or alcohol treatment.

Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

By signing and submitting this application the applicant/ Contractor certifies that it will comply with the
requirements of the Act.

The applicant/contractor further agrees that it will require the language of this ccriiricaiion be included in any sub
awards which contain provisions for the children's seivices and that all Sub-contractor shall certify accordingly.

Coniracior Representativc^gnarure Representative Title

fommnilt/ Drhcn Lh)i>r4ii/) nf fnuMU f - p - 7.3
Contractor Name ' Date
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FAP Approval 10 Oblls«tc

STATE

EXAMPte ONLY

APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16

Exhibit I

TOTAL
ICONTRACTEO BUDGET 5)8,220.90 5.646,370.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 6,546.372.60
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.165,551.00 :
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 1,165,551.00 0.00 0.00 1.165.551.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE 538,220.00 4,460.819.00 4,582.60 357,200.00 5,380,821.60

BMCA

First 7/1/2019 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE16 TOTAL
ICONTRACTEO BUDGET 95.663.00 1,003.586.00 1,000.00 69,960.00 1,170,209.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
ITHIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 207,112.00 0.00 0.00 207.112.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 95,663.00 796.474.00 1.000.00 69.960.00 963,097.00

SNHS

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ■ ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
ICONTRACTEO BUDGET 163.777.00 1,716,152.00 1.000.00 84.220.00 1.967,149.00 [
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00 ■
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354.578.00 0.00 o.oo 354,576.00 j
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354,578.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 163.777.00 1,363.574.00 1,000.00 84.220.00 1.612.571.00

SCS

First 7/1/2019 ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET 83,835.00 879.501.00 825.00 64,960.00 1,029,121.00 1
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE o.oo 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181.504.00 1
TOTAL AVAIUBLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 181.504.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 83,835.00 697.997.00 825.00 64.960.00 847,617.00

CAPSC

First 7/1/2019 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET 54,676.00 573,593.00 757.60 55.110.00 684,136.60 1
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118.373.00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 118,373.00 0.00 0.00 118,373.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 54,676.00 455,220.00 757.60 55.110.00 565,763.60

TCCA

First 7/1/2019 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 TOTAL
[CONTRACTED BUDGET 140.269.00 1.471.538.00 1,000.00 62.950.00 1,695,757.00 j
EXPECTED BUDGET 0.00
PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
[THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303,984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00 [
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303,984.00 0.00 0.00 303,984.00
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE 140.269.00 1.167.554.00 1.000.00 82,950.00 1,391,773.00

LIHEAP24

Award « 2401KHUEA
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P37Ej^bitL ,
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY

AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFaTA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than S30.000 and awarded on or after October I, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or more. If the initial
award is below $30,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over $30,000,
the award is subject to the FFaTA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
New Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for any subaward or
contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award

3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principal place of performance
9) Unique entity identifier (LIE! #)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues arc from the Federal goverrmicnt, and those
revenues are greater than $30M armually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-

252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's represeniaiive, as identified in Sections I. II and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampshire Department of Energy and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accountability and Transparency Act.

(\rYjrr/,)\ Jhrkfr. f£0
:dC(Contractor K^rcscniativc Signature) (Authorizca Contractor Representative Name & Title)

[mmtifsihf j^hhn hril^nkif nf Sfrol^rd founir\J ^-17-2-3
(Contractor Name) (Date)

LIHEAP 24 CAPSC Exhibit J

Award <f240INHLlEA ^ Page I of 2
CFDA No. 93.568 Initials ^HCbate



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The UEl number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subconuacts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) S30,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgranis. and/or cooperative agreements?

NO K YES

If the answer to U2 above is NO, stop here

Ifthe answer to i^2 above Is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business
or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or lS(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

NO X YES

If the answer to above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above Is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name; Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

LIHEAP 24 CAPSC Exhibit J

Award# 240INHLIEA
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that COMMUNITY ACTION

PARTNERSHTP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on May 25, 1965.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of Stale's office have been

received atid is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 65583

Certificaie Number 0006195759

Qp
<9

%

o "0
V9

%

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State ofNew Hampshire,

this 4th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

(Corporate Authority)

I, Alison Dorow, Board Secretary of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

(hereinafter the "Corporation"), a New Hampshire corporation, hereby certify that: (1) I am the duly

elected and acting 0oard of Directors Secretary of the Corporation;(2) I maintain and have custody and am

familiar with the minute books of the Corporation; (3) I am duly authorized to Issue certificates with respect to

the contents of such bool(s:(4) that the Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on October 20.

2022 such authority to be In force and effect until October 19.2023.

The person(s) holding the below listed posltlon(s) are authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the

Corporation any contract or other instrument for the sale of products and services:

Betsey Andrews Parker CEO

(name) (position)

^Terry Jarvis ^ ,Board Chair •

(itame) (position)

(5) the meeting of the Board of Directors was held In accordance with New Hampshire

Law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said authorization has not been modified, amended or

rescinded and continues in full force and effect as of the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, i have hereunto set my hand as the Board Secretary of the corporation this

17^ day of August, 2023.

Alison Oorow/Board Secretary

STATE OF New Hampshire

COUNTY OF Strafford

On this 17th day of August. 2023, before me, MIchele Wlison, the Undersigned

Officer, personally appeared Alison Dorow who acknowledged her/himself

To be the Board Secretary of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County, a corporation and

that She/he as such Board Secretary being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing Instrument for

the Purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.,

1\ I f. A 1 I /I

I \ / I

Notary Publlc/Michele Wilson

Commission Expiration Date: 5/3/2028



yyrbwc/ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OAfi owoormrr)

06^27/2023

THIS CERTlfICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFKAtE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURAKCE DOES NOT CONSTTTl/TE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZEO
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTinCATE HOLDER.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT CKKTIHIHD I>UBLIC ACCOUNTAffTS
DOVKR • tfOI»:BOKO

NORTH COmV

To the Board of Directors

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Community Action Partnership
of Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit organization) and Affiliate, which comprise the
consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31. 2022 and. 2021. and the related
consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate as of December 31. 2022
and 2021. and the changes In its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Community Action Partnership
of Strafford County and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern within one year
after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors'
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Govemment
Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements..

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on.lhe effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and Affiliate's
intemal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and
Affiliate's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves.' and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June T5.
2023, on our consideration of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report Is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an.integral part of an
audit performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Dover, New Hampshire
June 15, 2023



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY AND AFRLIATF

CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Inventory

Prepaid expenses
Other current assets

Current portion of right of use asset

Total current assets

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Restricted cash

Security deposits
Property, net of accumulated depreciation
Other noncurrent assets

Right of use asset, less current portion shown above

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

1.355,108

2.556,852

50,000

501.752

52.046

65,513

4.581.271

29,455

8,427

5,804,619

25,503
81.312

5,949.316

2021

1,550,537
2,130,211

12,600

511,532

36.666

1,334

4.242.880

18,991

8.469
6,110.022

25.503

6.162_^85

$  10,530.587 $ 10,405.865

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and related taxes
Accrued compensated absences
Refundable advances

Other current liabilities

Current portion of right of use liability

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion shown above
Security deposits
Right of use liability, less current portion shown above

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

95,690

445,958

129,018

205,528
1.581,774

73.462
65.513

2,596.943

2.908,484

3.201
81.312

-2.992.997

5,589,940

4,634.862
305.785

4,940,647

134.868

921,039

136,247

145,234

950,865

2.288,253

3,221,845

3,201

3,225.046

5,513,299

4,533,937
358.629

4.892,566

$  10,530,587 $ 10.405.865

See Notes to Financial Statements

4



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue

Fees for service

Rent revenue

Public support
in-kind donations

Interest

Fundraising
Other revenue

Gain on disposal of property

Total revenues and other support

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Total revenues, other support, and net
assets released from restrictions

EXPENSES

Program services

Child services

Community services

Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization

Without Donor

Restrictions

42,329,510

1,976.344

58,600

514,628
968,080

402

167,764

1,216

27,491

46.064,035

With Donor

Restrictions

166,561

46.230.596

5.120,775

2,123,402

4,158,324

31,536,296

1,791,979

113,717

113,717

(166,561)

(52.844)

Total

$ 42,329,510
1,976,344

58,600

628,345
988,080

402

167,764

1.216
27,491

46.177.752

46.177.752

5,120.775

2,123,402

4,158,324

31.536,296

1,791,979

Total program services

Supporting activities

Management and general
Fundraising

44,730,776

1,179,649

219,246

44,730,776

1,179,649

219,246

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

46,129.671

100,925

4,533,937

(52,844)

358,629

46,129,671

48,081

4,892,566

$  4,634,862 $ 305,785 $ 4,940,647

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFU lATF

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2021

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total

CHANGES IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue $ 19,989,740 $ - $ 19,989,740
Fees for service 2,576,520 - 2.576,520
Rent revenue 51,351 51,351

Public suppon 352,142 358,629 710,771
In-kind donations 898,056 - 898,056

Interest 635 • 635

Fundralsing 20,050 - 20,050
Other revenue

Loss on disposal of property

725,966

(51,681)

- 725,966

(51,681)

Total revenues and other support 24,562,779 358,629 24,921,408

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS 301,566 (301.566)

Total revenues, other support, and net
assets released from restrictions 24,864.345 57,063 24,921,408

EXPENSES

Program services

Child services

Community services

Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization

Workforce development

5,251,539
2,036,906

2,459i441

10,714,923

2,483,701
3,793

-

5,251,539

2,036,906

2,459,441

10,714.923

2,483,701
3,793

Total program services 22,950,303 - 22,950,303

Supporting activities
Management and general
Fundralsing

905,781

68,241

- 905,781

68,241

Total expenses 23,924,325 23,924.325

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 940,020 57,063 997,083

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,593,917 301.566 3,895.483

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  4,533,937 $ 358,629 $  4.892,566

See Notes to Financial Statements
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CQMMUHTTY ACTION PABTWEBSHtP OF STRAfFQftD CQUWTY AWO Affnj*Tg

Ptyral

P«)TOl tUM
P(ing« bcrwAs
Retlr«n«nt

^A^cthwtulion mcteriai. iud

and cSeM tssistsKs

kvkind expwMS

C«n«uSanu and eontraa labor

CanwmaWa iwppdes
Occupancy
Rapeira and mainienanca

Inturancs

Trakilrtg and canfarenees

Oapradation
Travel and tnnapartatlon

Printirtg and poctao*

Eouipmenl and cempuier
Intereat expenee

Irtdiraci

Oiner program wppon

Total expenaee

CONSOLIOATEO STATEMENT OP PUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

POR THE TEAR FNOFD DECEMBER St Kii

ChBd
Intermedlata Managamant

Communtty Energy Total Program lAllocatlen) and

Servlcee Servlcea Aeeleience Mouetna KVeimertxitlon Senrlcee PooH Ganaral Pondralelno Total

S 2.951.365 S  644,816 t 388.986 5  920.193 S  164.650 S 5.070.010 S  73.067 S  681.722 $  121.545 5 5.948.344
247.208 57.069 32.974 75.584 12.672 425.507 6.311 63.162 9.833 504.813
205.921 34.528 30.366 72.552 19.799 363.166 82 37.953 5.220 406.421
14.995 2.162 1.569 6.445 761 25.932 752 5.767 75 32.526

119.381 20.568 3.606.402 29.909.257 1.514.986 35.170,616 . 35.170.616
14.772 968.268 • - . 963.040 . . 5.040 988.060
166.829 14.565 2.692 212.431 1.597 396.114 99.599 139.998 12,755 650.466
206.399 205.366 9.582 35.892 6.549 465.766 42.120 18.091 3.958 529.957
704.888 70.467 41.243 141.580 16.043 976.219 (670.868) 69.769 6.201 361.521
39.766 23.936 7.S41 10.408 2.763 64.414 440.423 660 2.194 527.691
71.667 11.150 1.610 22.841 2.431 109.699 25,811 52.785 259 188.554
60.246 5.551 2.526 7.834 17,205 >13.362 119 28.440 41.454 181.375
80.133 34.099 391 i 34.641 4.328 153.592 . 85.443 . 239.035
42,527 4.808 89 11.836 8.722 65.782 (12.356) 4.699 769 58.894
3.723 55 10.850 348 96 15.072 11.043 5.576 31.691

- 6.588 24.285 10.544 41.417 29.326 1.310 72.053
10.658 10.141 12.037 3.070 35.906 5.902 81.615 1.438 125.141

105.441 - • . . 105.441 (105.441)
65.716 15.314 4.774 38.134 3 761 127 699 (40.566) 5.743 1 619 94 493

$ 5,120.775 S 2,123.402 S 4.158.324 S 31.536.296 S  1.791.979 S 44.730.776 S 5  1.179.649 S  219.246 S 46.129.671

See Netae to PInancUl Sutafflents
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRO CQUWTY

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOP THE YEAR ENOED DECEMBER i\. 2021

ChlU Community EMfgy

Awtifnci HouiIoq W««thftntlon

Woitrtorc* Total Proomm

Doretepmont SrvteM

IntonrwdlatB

{Allocation^

PooN

Management

and

GeneftI Fundrabino Total

PeyroB S 3.8n.2S2 t  766.110 5  282.483 S  463.574 S  123.279 % 2.317 5 4.251.015 S  69.319 3  577.712 $ 14.794 5 4,932,840
Payrol taxes 230.568 66.376 24.024 40.252 6.068 226 371.356 7.893 46.473 1,406 427.126
Fringe tier>efiis 190.015 36.183 17.610 31.410 15.004 269 . 293.409 3.396 55.482 1,224 353.603
Reflremem 13.21B 3.001 1.223 3.377 332 12 21.161 274 (3.643) 104 17.696
Weatherization materiel, fuel

and cSent assistanco 63.377 U0.408 2.052.544 0.000.048 2.216.030 .• 14.384.307 - . . 14.364.307

bvklnd expenses 573.046 324.950 . 60 - . 806.056 . . . 898.056

Consultants artd contract latxv 239.299 52.736 4.627 10.672 660 79 317.275 16.516 164.175 15.574 513.540

ConsumaWa suppBas 213.448 279.104 430 7.742 23.112 . 473,836 23.939 9.941 922 506.638

Occupancy 612.028 175.260 31.756 67.618 17.134 664 924.902 (450.603) 42.136 1,720 518.164

Repairs and maintenanca 46.039 4.661 12.782 48.073 045 . 115.620 296.872 12.260 2.476 427,228

msuranoe 83.971 0.596 1,312 24.005 6.157 4 125.947 12.206 43.416 107 161.678
MeetSrtgs. events ertd training 80.601 9.164 394 762 10.774 - 101.695 1.404 13,052 20.573 136.724

Depredation 79.670 18.502 391 23.390 4.328 . 126.261 - 70.500 • 196.781
Travel 19.406 1.677 - 969 1.689 - 23.783 (5.501) 567 30 18.879
Printing artd postage 3.380 265 7.202 403 254 . 11.504 1.275 4.813 4.038 22.230
Equtpmeni and computer 27.793 05.608 7.677 39.490 46.008 - 217.476 4.223 (82.364) 550 139.865

Interest expense 76.249 ■ 8.070 13.621 8.314 4.017 . 111.171 6.377 16.469 699 136.936
Otner program suppon 38.823 50.206 454 5.635 . 95.118 (7.594) 10.273 3,215 110.012
lr>direct costs 45.536 40.765 . . 66.321 (68.321) . •

Total expenses t 5.251.539 S 2.036.006 t 2,459,441 $ 10.714.023 5 2.463.701 t 3.793 $ 22.950.303 5 %  905.761 $ 68.241 5 23.924.325

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY AND AFFILIATP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTtVITIES

Change in net assets S 48,061 S 997.083
Adjustment to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Contribution of building improvements . (170.288)
Depreciation 239.035 196.781
Loss (gain) on disposal of property (27,491) 51.681
Forgiveness of debt • Paycheck Protection Program . (97.500)

Decrease (increase) in assets:

Accounts receivable (426.641) 138.692
Contributions receivable (37.400) 25.800
Inventory 9.760 (285.299)
Prepaid expenses (15.380) (348)
Other current assets 1,334 (1.334)
Security deposits 42 (3.143)
Other noncurreni assets 1.997

increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable (475.081) (576.646)
Accrued payroll and related taxes (7.229) 47.565
Accrued compensated absences 60.294 14,126
Deferred revenue . (107,606)
Refundable advances 630.909 477.574
Other current liabilities 73.462 (1.318)
Security deposits 3.201

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 73.715 711.018

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment (506.141) (323,975)
Proceeds on sale of property 600.000 .

Acquisition of property from Dover Oaycare Learning Center
• (590.900)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 93.659 (914.875)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowings of long-tenm debt . 326.463
Payments made on tong-term debt (352.539) (48,188)
Net repayments on demand note payable . (105.377)
Assumption of debt of Dover Oaycare Learning Center

• 284.176

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (352.539) 457.074

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (184.965) 253,217

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. BEGINNING OF YEAR 1.569.528 1.316,311

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR s 1.384.563 S 1.569.528

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

Cash s 1,355.108 s 1.550.537
Restricted cash;

Insurance escrow 9.193 5.493
Tax escrow 5,952 1.125
Replacement reserves 4,363 2.501
Operating reserve 9.947 9.872

Total cash and restricted cash s 1.384.563 s 1.569.528

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for interest s 121,765 s 133.966

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Organization and Principles of Consolidation

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (the Agency) is a 501(c)(3)
private New Hampshire non-profit organization established under the provisions
of the Equal Opportunity Act of 1964. Without services provided by the Agency,
many local residents would be without a means to provide for their basic needs,
including food, education, child care, utilities assistance, transportation, housing,
emergency shelter and access to other services. The mission of the Agency is to
educate, advocate and assist people in Strafford County to help meet their basic
needs and promote self-sufficiency. The vision of the Agency is to eliminate
poverty in Strafford County through compassion, education, self-sufficiency,
transparency, accountability, team work, client focus and professionalism.

Academy Street Family Housing, LLC (Academy Street) is a limited liability
company which is consolidated because the Agency controls 100% of the voting
power of Academy Street. Academy Street leases property from the Agency
under a lease agreement for an annual rent amount of $1. The lease expires
during April 2045. Unless either party serves the other with a 180 day written
notice prior to the expiration of the initial term, at the end of the initial term, the
lease shall be automatically extended for an additional 25 year term. All
significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
consolidated financial statements.

In addition to the Agency's administrative office located in Dover, the Agency
maintains its outreach capacity by operating program offices in Farmington.
Milton, Rochester. Dover and Somersworth. The Agency is funded by Federal,
state, county and local funds, as well as United Way grants, public utilities,
foundation and charitable grant funds, fees for service, private business
donations, and donations from individuals. The Agency is governed by a tripartite
board of directors made up of elected officials, community leaders from for-profit
and non-profit organizations and residents who are low income. The board is
responsible for assuring that the Agency continues to assess and respond to the
causes and conditions of poverty in its community, achieve anticipated family and
community outcomes, and remain administratively and fiscally sound. The
Agency administers a wide range of coordinated programs to more than 15,000
people annually, and the programs are designed to have a measurable impact on
poverty and health status among the most vulnerable residents: those under the
age of 6, the elderly and those living in poverty. This coordinated approach is
accomplished by providing a broad array of services that are locally defined,
planned and managed with community agencies.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

Basis of Accountino

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAR) of the United Stales.

Financial Statement Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Agency to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Agency. These net assets may be
used at the discretion of the Agency's management and board of
directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations
imposed by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary
in nature: those restrictions will be met by actions of the Agency or by
passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby
the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with
donor restrictions. When restriction expires, net assets are reclassified
from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor
restrictions in the statement of activities.

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Agency had net assets without donor and
with donor restrictions.

Refundable Advances

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and
recognized as revenue in the period in which the related services are performed
or expenditures are incurred.

11



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER.31. 2022 AND 2021

Contributions

All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless
specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by the
donor for future periods or for specific purposes are reported as temporarily
restricted or permanently restricted support, depending on the nature of the
restriction. However, If a restriction is fulfilled in the same period in which the
contribution is received, the Agency reports the support as unrestricted.

Contributed Services

Donated services are recognized as contributions in accordance with FASB ASC
No. 958, Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made, if the
services (a) create or enhance non-financial assets or (b) require specialized
skills and would otherwise be purchased by the Agency.

Volunteers provided various services throughout the year that are not recognized
as contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria under
FASB ASC No. 958 were not met.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Unless otherwise indicated, fair values pf all reported assets and liabilities that
are financial instruments approximate the carrying values of such amounts.

Inventory
Inventory materials are fixtures for installation and recorded at cost or contributed
value, using the first-in, first-out method.

Property and Depreciation

Property and equipment, which have a cost greater than $5,000, are capitalized
at cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair value at the date of donation.
Specific grants and awards may have a threshold lower than this amount and
that program will abide by those guidelines. Assets are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method as follows;

Buildings and improvements 15 - 40 years
Furniture, equipment and machinery 3-10 years
Vehicles 5- 7 years

Depreciation expense aggregated $239,035 and $196,781 for the years ended
December 31. 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Accrued Earned Time

The Agency has accrued a liability of $205,528 and $145,234 at December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively, for future compensated leave time that its
employees have earned and which is vested with the employee.

12



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PGR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

Income Taxes

The Agency is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has determined the Agency to be
other than a private foundation. The Agency is also exempt from the New
Hampshire Business Enterprise Tax.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes",
establishes the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a system for measuring,
the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements. Management has
analyzed the Agency's tax position taken on its information returns for the
previous three tax years and has concluded that no additional provision for
income taxes is necessary in the Agency's financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equlvalerits

The Agency considers all highly liquid financial instruments with original
maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition Policy

The Agency derives revenue from grants, fees for services, donations, public
support, and fundraising. Revenues are recognized when control of these
services are transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Agency expects to be entitled to in exchange for those
services. Cost incurred to obtain a contract will be expensed as incurred when
the amortization period is less than a year.

Academy Street derives revenue from the rental of apartment units. Revenues
are recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due and control of the
apartment units is transferred to the lessees. Control of the leased units is
transferred to the lessee in an exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to
obtain a lease will be expensed as incurred.

Use of Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Advertising Expenses

The Agency expenses advertising costs as they are incurred. Total advertising
costs for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 amounted to $72,759
and $32,082, respectively.

13



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

Debt Issuance Costs

As required under FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2015-03,
amortization expense for the years ended December 31. 2022 and 2021
amounted to $3,376 and $2,970 and has been included with interest expense in
the consolidated statement of activities for each year. The unamortized deferred
financing costs have been included as a reduction of the long term debt (see
Note 9).

In-kind Contributions

The Agency pays below-market rent for the use of certain facilities. In
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the difference
between amounts paid for the use of the facilities and the fair value of the rental
space has been recorded as an in-kind donation and as an in-kind expense in
the accompanying financial statements. The estimated fair value of the donation
was determined to be $14,772 and $185,979 for the years ended December 31.
2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed food commodities and other goods that are
required to be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated
fair value of these food commodities and goods was determined to be $968,268
and $5,040, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2022. For the year
ended December 31, 2021, the estimated fair value of these food commodities
and goods was determined to be $594,404 and $3,895, respectively.

The Agency also receives contributed professional services that are required to
be recorded in accordance with FASB ASC No. 958. The estimated fair value of
these services was determined to be $113,778 for the year ended December 31,
2021. There were no contributed professional services for the year ended
December 31, 2022.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among
the program services and supporting activities benefited. Occupancy costs have
been grouped and allocated to the programs as a line item. Such allocations have
been determined by management on an equitable basis.

The expenses that are allocated include the. following:

Expense Method of allocation

Salaries and benefits Time and effort

Occupancy Square footage/revenues

Depreciation Square footage

All other expenses Approved indirect rate

14



AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, to increase
transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets
and lease liabilities on the statement of financial position and disclosing key
information about leasing arrangements. In consideration of the. most recent
deferral of the ASU effective date as of the date of these financial statements, the
ASU is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2021 with early adoption permitted, using a modified retrospective
approach. The Agency adopted the provisions of ASU 2016-02 during 2022.

In September 2020, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No.
2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by Not-
for-profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets, intended to improve
transparency in the reporting of contributed nonfinancial assets, also known as
gifts-in-kind, for not-for-profit organizations. Examples of contributed nonfinancial
assets include fixed assets such as land, buildings, and equipment; the use of
fixed assets or utilities; materials and supplies, such as food or clothing;
intangible assets; and recognized contributed services. The ASU requires a not-
for-profit organization to present contributed nonfinancial assets as a separate
line item in the statement of activities, apart from contributions of cash or other
financial assets. It also requires certain disclosures for each category of
contributed nonfinancial assets recognized. The Agency adopted the provisions
of ASU 2020-07 during 2022.

NOTE 2. PROPERTY

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, property consisted of the following:

2022 2021

Land, buildings and improvements $6,181,672 $6,324,193
Furniture, equipment and machinery 398,645 340,883
Vehicles 350.136 350.136

Total 6,930,453 7.015,212
Less accumulated depreciation 1.125.834 905.190

Net property $5.804.619
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTJ^ERSHI^^^^ STRAFFORH COUNTY

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 3. RESTRICTED CASH BALANCES

Certain cash accounts have been established and are being funded in accordance
with a regulatory agreement entered into between Academy Street and New
Hampshire Housing as discussed below. All reserves are required to be held in
qualified New Hampshire financial institutions that are insured by the FDIC.

Operating Reserve

Under the regulatory agreement, Academy Street is required to establish an
operating reserve. The operating resen/e was established during the year ended
December 31, 2021 and funded during the year ended December 31, 2022.

Replacement Reserve

Under the regulatory agreement, Academy Street is required to set aside amounts
for the replacement of property and other expenditures approved by New
Hampshire Housing. Additionally, Academy Street is required to make monthly
payments to the reserve. The reserve was properly funded during 2022 and 2021.

Insurance and Real Estate Tax Escrows

Academy Street is required to establish a reserve to fund tax and insurance
payments in the project. Amounts are to be deposited on a monthly basis to accrue
a sufficient balance to pay future tax and insurance bills of the project. As of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the balance in the reserves for tax and insurance
escrows was properly funded.

NOTE 4. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Agency's financial assets as of December 31. 2022
and 2021:

2022 2021

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Contributions receivable

Restricted cash

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used

within one year:
Restricted cash

Board designated funds

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months
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$ 1,355,108 $ 1,550,537
2,556,852 2,130,211

50,000
29.455

29,455

307.315

12,600

18.991

3,991,415 3,712,339

18,991
307.315

$ 3.854.645 $ 3 386 033



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

The Agency's goal is generally to maintain financial assets to meet 30 days of
operating expenses. As part of its liquidity plan, excess cash is invested in short-
term investments, including money market accounts.

NOTE 5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect
from balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at December 31,
2022 and 2021. The Agency has no policy for charging interest on overdue
accounts.

NOTE 6. CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

Contributions receivable represent promises to give, which have been made by
donors but have not yet been received by the Agency. The Agency considers
contributions receivable to be fully collectible: accordingly, no allowance for
contributions receivable has been recorded.

Total unconditional promises to give were as follows at December 31. 2022 and
2021:

Within one year
In two to five years

2022

30,000

20,000

2021

8,500

4.100

S  5QQQ0 s 12.600

NOTE 7. PLEDGED ASSETS

As described in Note 8, all assets of the Agency are pledged as collateral under
the Agency's demand note payable agreement. As described in Note 9, the
building of the Agency is pledged as collateral under the Agency's mortgage note
payable agreement.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 8. DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE

The Agency has available a revolving line of credit with a bank in the amount of
$.250,000. The note is payable upon demand. Interest is stated at the prime rate
plus 1% which resulted in an interest rate of 8.50% at December 31, 2022 and
4.25% at December 31, 2021. The note is coltateralized by all the assets of the
Agency. There was no outstanding balance on the demand note payable as of
December 31. 2022 and 2021.

NOTE 9. LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debt at December 31, 2022 and 2021 consisted of the following:

2022 2021

Mortgage payable to Kennebunk Savings Bank
which had interest only payments for 36 months
followed by principal and interest payments for
264 months. During the year ended December 31.
2022 the note was refinanced to a fixed interest

rate of 4.25% for the first ten years resulting in
monthly principal and interest payments of
$11,170. On April 26, 2032, and on that date every
year thereafter, principal and interest payments
will adjust to 1.50% above the highest U.S Prime
Rate as published in the Wall Street Journal on
the applicable change date, with a floor rate of 4%.
The note matures in 2043. The mortgage payable
is secured by real estate.

5.00% notes payable to the New Hampshire
Community Loan Fund with monthly principal and
interest payments of $3,251, maturing October
2037. The notes are secured by real estate.

5.75% note payable to First Seacoast Bank with
monthly principal and interest payments of $493.
The note was secured by real estate and was paid
off during 2022.

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing deferred until April 21. 2060
or until the project is sold, refinanced or surplus
cash is available. The note is secured by real
estate.

$ 1,846,509 $ 1.909,874

406,854 668,143

31,261

785,889 785,889
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED-DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing deferred until July 1, 2051 or
until the project is sold, refinanced or surplus cash
is available. The note is secured by real estate. 25.755 25.755

Total long term debt before current portion of long
term debt and unamortized debt issuance costs 3,066,007 . 3,420,922

Current portion of long term debt (95,690) (134,868)
Unamortized debt issuance costs (60.8331 (64.2091

The schedule of maturities of long term debt at December 31, 2022 is as follows:

Year Ended

December 31 Amount

2023 $ 95,690
2024 79,218

2025 82,809
2026 86,562

2027 90,488

Thereafter 2.630.240

Total £3 065007

NOTE 10. NET ASSETS

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, net assets with donor restrictions consisted of

the following:
2022 2021

Building campaign $ - $ 59,447
Whole family 42,755 67,355
COVID related 120,546 1 24,546
Homeless outreach - 8,317

Fuel assistance 142.484 80,164
Weatherization : 18,800

Total S 305.785 $ 358.629
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFQRD COUNTY
AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2Q21

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, net assets without donor restrictions consisted
of the following:

2022 2021

Undesignated $4,327,547 $4,226,622
Board designated 307.315 307.315

Total net assets without donor restrictions $4.634.862 $ 4.533.937

NOTE 11. OPERATING LEASES

Facilities occupied by the Agency for its community service programs are rented
under the terms of various.leases. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and
2021, the annual lease/rent expense for the leased facilities was $90,501 and
$250,736, respectively.

The Agency accounts for its operating leases under FASB ASC 842. As such, a
right of use ("ROU") asset and corresponding lease liability are recorded in the
statement of financial position. ROU assets represent the Agency's right to use
an underlying asset for the lease term and the lease liabilities represent their
obligation to make the lease payments arising from the lease.

Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement
dale based on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. The
discount rale related to the Agency's lease liability as of December 31, 2022 was
3.75%, which is based upon the risk free borrowing rates commensurate with the
lease terrti. At December 31. 2022, the right of use asset and liability is
$146,825.

Common expenses, classified as occupancy costs in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements, are considered a non-lease component under
FASB ASC 842 and are recognized as costs as incurred.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAPFQRD nnUMTy
AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

Lease liability maturities as of December 31, 2022 is as follows:

Year Ending
December 31 Amount

2023 $  69.901
2024 38.401
2025 6,901
2026 . 6,901
2027 6,901

Thereafter 31.044

Total undiscounted lease liability 160,049

Less imputed interest f13.2241

Total lease liability

NOTE 12. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Agency maintains a 403(b) Plan and Trust (the Plan) covering substantially
ail employees. Employee contributions to the Plan are made at-predetermined
rates elected by employees. Additionally, the Agency provides a matching
contribution equal to 25% of the employee's contribution up to 5% of the
employee's compensation. Effective April 1. 2016, the Agency instituted an auto
enrollment feature mandating a minimum 1% employee contribution; however,
employees reserve the right to decline the auto enrollment. Employer matching
contributions for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 totaled $32,526
and $17,696, respectively.

NOTE 13. CONCENTRATION OF RISK

The Agency receives a majority of its support from federal and state
governments. For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, approximately
96% and 91%, respectively, of the Agency's total revenue was received from
federal and state governments. If a significant reduction in the level of support
were to occur, it would have a significant effect on the Agency's programs and
activities.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 14. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Agency maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions in New
Hampshire. The balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation up' to $250,000. The Agency maintains an agreement with its
primary financial institution to collateralize the balances in excess of $250,000.

NOTE 15. CONTINGENCIES

The Agency receives grant funding from various sources. Under the terms of
these agreements, the Agency is required to use the funds within a certain period
and for purposes specified by the governing laws and regulations. If expenditures
were found not to have been made in compliance with the laws and regulations,
the Agency might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made
for this contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not been determined
or assessed as of December 31, 2022 and 2021.

NOTE 16. RENTAL INCOME RECEIVABLE

During the year ended December 31, 2022, and subsequent to year end.
Academy Street entered into four separate rental agreements for use of their four
apartments. The rental agreements have differing expirations ranging from April
2023 through April 2024. Monthly payments for the agreements ranged from
$1,168 to $1,394 and are due the first day of each month.

The approximate future rental payments owed on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ended

December 31 Amount

2023

2024

Total

36,678

11,152

S  47830

NOTE 17. PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

During 2020, the Agency received funds under the Payroll Protection Program
(PPP). The PPP was established as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and
Economic Security Act (CARES ACT). The PPP provided loans for qualifying
businesses for amounts up to 2.5 times the average monthly payroll expenses of
the qualifying business. The loans and accrued interest are forgivable after
twenty-four weeks as long as the borrower used the loan proceeds for eligible
purposes, including payroll, benefits, rent and utilities, and maintained its payroll
levels. The amount of the loan forgiveness may be reduced if the borrower
terminates employees or reduces salaries during the twenty-four-week period.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY

AND AFFILIATE

CONSOLIDATED NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 AND 2021

During the year ended December 31, 2021. the Agency applied for and received
full forgiveness and therefore, recognized $97,500 as grant revenue in the
accompanying consolidated statement of activities for the year ended December
31,2021.

NOTE 18. DOVER DAYCARE LEARNING CENTER

During the year ended December 31, 2021. the Agency acquired all of the assets
and liabililies of Dover Daycare Learning Center (the Center). Total assets and
liabilities acquired were approximately. $591,000 and $284,000, respectively. The
Agency received $391,856 in revenue'as a result of the acquisition, which is
included in other revenue in the accompanying consolidated statement of
activities for the year ended December 31. 2021.

NOTE 19. BUILDING IMPROVEMENT CONTRIBUTION

During the year ended December 31, 2021, Academy Street received a contribution
in the form of building improvements to the property from a weatherization program
managed by the Agency. The improvements totaled $170,288 and are recorded as
property and other revenue in the December 31, 2021 financial statements.

NOTE 20. RECLASSIFCATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year's financial statements,
which was taken from the December 31, 2021 financial statements, to conform to
the current year presentation.

NOTE 21. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date but arose
after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 15,
2023, the date the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHtP OF fiTRAFPnqp COUNTY Awn AFFM li^JF

CONSOLIOATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31. 2022

Academy

Street Family
CAPSC Housino. LLC Total Adiustmenta Consolidated

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivat>le

Contribulions receivable

Due from affiliate
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Current portion of right of use asset

S  1,281.098

2,555,440

50,000

9.123

501.752

52.046

65.513

S  74,010
1,412

$  1.355.108
2,556.852

50,000

9.123
501.752

52.046

65.513

$

(9,123)

S  1.355.108
2.556.652

50.000

501.752
S2.046

65.513

Total current assets 4.514.972 75.422 4.590.394 (9.123) 4.581.271

NONCURRENTASSETS
Restricted cash

Security deposits
Property, net of accumulated depreciation
Other noncurrent assets

' Right of use asset, less current portion shown above

5.226

4.932.628

25.503
81.312

29.455

3.201

871.991

29,455

8.427

5.804.619

25.503
81.312

-  •
29,455

8.427

5.804.619

25.503
81.312

Total noncun^ent assels 5.044.669 904.647 5.949.316 5.949.316

TOTAL ASSETS $  9.559.641 $  980.069 S  10.539.710 S  (9.123) 5  10.530.567

LIABILmES AND NET ASSFTS

CURRENT LlABILfTIES

Current portion of long term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued payroD and related taxes
Accrued compensated absences
Due to afTiltale

Refundable advances

Other current liabilities

Current portion of right of use liability

$  75,785

425.562

129.018

205,528

1.581.774

72.704

65.513

S  19.905

20.396

9.123

758

S  95,690

445.958

129.018

205.528

9.123

1.581.774

73.462

65.513

S

(9.123)

$  95.690

445.958

129.018

205.526

1.581.774

73.462

65,513

Total current liabilities 2.SS5.884 50.162 2.606.066 (9.123) 2.596.943

NONCURRENT LlABILITiES
Lor>g term debt, less current portion shown above
Security deposits
Right of use liability, less current portion shown above

2.133.018

81.312

775.466

3.201

2.908.484

3.201

81.312

.

2.908,464

3.201
61.312

Total noncurrent liabilities 2.214.330 778.667 2.992.997 2.992.997

Total liabilities 4.770.214 826.849 5.599.063 (9.123) 5.589.940

NET ASSETS

WHhout donor restrictions
With donor restrldlons

4.483.642
- 305,785

151,220 4.634.862
305.785

• 4,634,662
305.785

Total net assets 4.789.427 151.220 4.940.647 4,940.647

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS S  9.559.641 S 980.069 S  10.539.710 $  (9.123) $  10.530.587

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF STRAFFORD COUNTY AND AFFtl lATF

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022 •

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue •

Fees for service

Rent revenue

Public support
In-kind donations

Interest

Fundraising
Other revenue

Gain on disposal of property

Total revenues and other support

EXPENSES

Program services

Child services

Community services
Energy assistance
Housing
Weatherization

Total program services

Supporting activities

Management and general
Fundraising

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

Academy

Street Family

CAP9P Housina. LLC Consolidated

$ 42.329.510 $ $ 42,329,510
1.976,344 - 1,976,344

- 58,600 58,600
628,345 - 628,345
988,080 . 988,080

199 203 402

167,764 . 167,764
1,216 - 1,216

27,491 - 27.491

46,118.949 58,803 46,177.752

5,120.775 5.120.775
2,123,402 - 2.123,402

4.158,324 . 4,158,324

31.455.192 81,104 31,536,296
1,791,979 - 1,791,979

44,649.672 81,104 44,730.776

1,179,649 1,179,649
219,246 - 219,246

46.048,567 81.104 46.129.671

70,382 (22,301) 48.081

4,719,045 173,521 4,892.566

$  4.789.427 $  151,220 $  4,940,647

See Notes to Financial Statements
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County under programs of the federal government for the year ended December
31, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes
in net assets, or cash flows of the Agency.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3. INDIRECT COST RATE

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County has elected not to use the ten
percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4. FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5. SUBRECIPIENTS

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County had no subrecipients for the
year ended December 31, 2022.
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP QF STRAFFHRn COUNTY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON

AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statement of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County (a New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31. 2022
and 2021. and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows, and
the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated June
15,2023.

Internal Control Over Financial Reportino
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal control over financial reporting (internal control)
to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely Ipasis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a'
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our, consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
wesfknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However^ material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing, Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization's internal control or on compliance, this report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
June 15, 2023
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COMMUNITY ACTION

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR

EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Community Action Partnership of Strafford County

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance with the
types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Community Action
Partnership of Strafford County's major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2022. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's major' federal programs , are
identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Community Action Partnership of Strafford County complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31,
2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained In Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
Stales; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.
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We are required to be independent of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County and
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Community Action Partnership of Strafford
County's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant
agreements applicable to Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's federal
programs.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance based
on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will
always delect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate. It would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's compliance with the requirements of each
major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance. whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
Include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County's internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances and to lest and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Community Action Partnership of
Strafford County's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such, that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Dover, New Hampshire
June 15, 2023
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COMMUNITY ACTIOhj

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2022

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

1. The auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on whether the financial
statements of Community Action Partnership of Strafford County were prepared in
accordance with GAAP.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported in
the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material weaknesses are
reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Community
Action. Partnership of Strafford County, which would be required to be reported in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
and on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No
material weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors" report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Community
Action Partnership of Strafford County expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
federal programs.

6. There were no audit findings that would be required to be reported in accordance with 2
CFR section 200.516(a).

7. The programs tested as major were; U.S. Department of Agriculture, Emergency Food
Assistance Program (Food Commodities). ALN 10.569 and U.S. Department of the
Treasury, Emergency Rental Assistance Program, ALN 21.023.

8. The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Community Action Partnership of Strafford County was determined to not be a low-risk
auditee.

B. FINDINGS-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

None

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS
AUDIT

None
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CommuDity Action Partnership ofStrafTord County
Board of Directors 2023

Name Address Email Phone Sector

Terry Jarvis
Chair

42 Main Street

P.O. Box 100

New Durham, NH 038SS

Jajvista22ginail.com 603-498-2283 Elected OfTicial

New Durham

Mark Brave

Vice Chair

259 County Farm Road
Suite 105

Dover, NH 03820
m b m vci"??).";! rn fTordso .o ru

603-605-6411(w)
603-534-0605 Sheriff - Strafford

Countv
Jean Miccolo

Treasurer

224 Old Dover Road

Rochester, NH 03867
ilmiccolo«S>merroca.<;t.nei 603-923-3487 Elected/ Appointed

Official

Strafford County
Commissioners Office

Alison Do row

Secretary
34 Brooks Road

Barrington, NH 03825
adorow/Tyco.slrafTord.nh.u.s

ndoro\v46f?A:iiinail.coin

603-988-1840

603-545-2092

Elected/Appointed
Strafford County
Attomcy

Alan Brown 51 Evens Road

Rochester. NH 03867
AbrownlBOoavchex.com

Ralanbrownli(S>email.com

603-767-6265 Private

Hope Morrow Fiynn 100 International Drive

Suite 365

Portsmouth, NH 03801

hoDCi^Dhoovcr-nvnn.com 603-686-1237(0 Private - Legal

Maureen Staples 2 Ruthie's Run

Dover, NH 03820
selD;iis'a>comuisLnfi 603-742-5872

603-834-1516 cell

Private

Anthony M. Carr 41 Whltely Drive
Dover, NH 03820

ncaiT{7i)sliatiecnuordoii.com 603-682-6669 Private

Leah Crouser 15 4"' Street Suite 3

Dover. NH 03820
IcrouserfrJJnliDd.oru 603-749-5540 Public Defender-

Lawyer

Nicki Gearwar 22 A Maple Street
Dover, NH 03820

niicanvadrSvahoo.coin 603-534-3859 Consumer

June 20,2023



CommuDity Action Partnership of StrafTord County
Board of Directors 2023

Captain Andrew
Swan berry

Rochester Police Department
23 Wakefield Street

Rochester. NH 03867

andrc\v.svvanberTN'?3rochcsiernh.ncl 603-330-7118

(Office)
603-330-7128

(Dispatch)

Public

MaHc Toussaint 51 Jay Way
Rochester NH 03868

niark.toiissainl^)eversoiirce.eoin 603-534.2475 Consumer

Robert Harrington 58 Childs Drive

Dover NH 03801

robcilliarrS 12(«)eniail.coni 603-767-1404 Consumer

Robert Warach 120 Silver Street

Dover. NH 03820

ri\\'arachi'(fJ)yn')ail.coin 603-550-6574 Elected official

James Ralhbun 24 Green Street

Farmington, NH 03835

biBiiml043(5)vahoo.com 603-507-3612 Consumer

Sarah Kuhi Dover, NH sarahekuhlt®Bmaii.com 603-566-7004 Private

Katrin Kasper 16 Elder Osbomc Dr.

Lee, NH 03861

KatnnKasoertffiiclcud.com 603-285-2255 Elected Official

Town Of Lee

Ian Oneail 6 Donna Lane

Raymond, NH 03077

ioneail(5)vahco.com 603-777-2030 Private

June 20» 2023



CommuDity Action Partnership of StrafTord County
LIHEAP PY 24

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

Lisa Garcia Fuel & Electric Manager $59,300.80 40% $23,720.32

Cassandra Martin Lead Intake $52,228.80 50% $26,1 14,40

Heidi Ctough Lead Certifier $58,406.40 40% $23,367.56

Dan Clark Director of Community
Services

$75,441.60 10% $7,544.16



D ClarkD

QUAUFICATTONS:
•  16 years orexpenence working with aduhswrih mente) illness, substance misuse disorder, and housing
instability

Excepiionalversatilsly and adaptability.
Dedicalion and drive asB hard-working individuaL
Ability to develop rapport wiib people of aD backgrouods.
Abflily to quickly tod thoroughly undeniandaod implemcnl oew concepts and practices.
Fimiliarrty with Medicare/Medkaid.Child/Aduh Protective, Housing, MaoagedCare.and

Voca tiona I Rehabilita tton systems.
EXPERIENCE:

2/2022-current

Commoiilty Aetioo Partnership of StraffordCounty, Dover, NH
Oirtctor ofHousing and Homeless Services
•  Responsible forday to day maoageii\ent,admmistration.andovetsigbtof all housin^omekss
programs and peraonnel

Developed and implemenled programmatic strategic plans
Ensured program compKa nee with all applicable local, state, federal la svs and regulations
Organize, write, andcoordinategrantappbcationsandsupportmateriab.
Managed applicable programmatic budgets, including development and ongoing monitoring to ensure

xpensesaii^ with revenue
Collected and analyzed data, evaluated courses of action, end prepared sound recommendalbnsand

ffeciivenatrativeandstatisticalrepons relative to program outcomes

Developed and maintained effective community relationships
Analyzed proposed legislation, regulations, or rule chaoges to determine bow program services could be

impacted.

11/2020-2/2022

Community Action Partnership of StraffordConnty, Dover, NH
Shelter Manager
• . Managed The Garrison emergency shelter and Willand Pond Warming Center, serving up to 100 clients
on any given night with iO-t-staff, including FT. FT. and Per Diem
•  Ensured adequate staffingcoverage for both locations
•  CoDa bora ted with CAPSC Day Center staff on prioritizing andadmittingcbents to The Garrison.
•  Created and enforced abelter regulations and conditions of admittance
•  Ensured at) pertinent informarioo was entered into statewide HMIS system
•  Successfully managedC0VlD-l9procedures, resulting in only 3 detected positive cases with nospread
to either staffor clients.

•  Provided 24/7 on<all support to both programs
•  Provided daUy/weekty/seasooalrepoilsto thcTri-Cities municipalitiesof numberofindtviduab
utilizing services, city ofori^, end estiroated cost savings.
•  /^ted as prrmaiy contact forThe Garrison hotel management.Tri Cities EMS providera, county welfare
officen. and other tDVolved parties
•  Managedlberequbition ofmeabaoddonationsprovidedby thecommuahy
•  Developed a working operations manualforcbe 2021-22 warming center
•  Lead a muhi-organczationa [project to support individuab bebig displaced by local police

09/2019-11/2020

MaioeHealth, Blddeford, ME



maDagemem system.

Acted as ao ITsuperniser and preliminary point of contact for ITqucstioos at the prograro level
Provided 24r7ctiDtcaI on<aU support to aDareasofthe agency on a rota ling schedule.

'Home Support {as Ingraham)

Woited with a team of mental health case miDagers. with a personal casdoado/^O-^ clients.
Provided in-home skills development services as fdentified on case manager created service plan.
Attended appointments with outside providers, including medical, psychiatric, therapeutic, housing
related, legal, insurance,and chijdcare providers.
Ensured that aO clients' needs were met while meeting a 11 state and federal requirements and deadlines.
Ensured that all program and agency productivity requirements were met on a continuing basis.

Crisis Support (as Ingraham)
Woried in anei^i bed, short stay crisb stabilization unit.
Provided daily supportforaduliswith mentallUness tn crisis as anattemativetohospitalizaiion.
Adminisiered and monitored medicalionsand vitalsigns asdbtcted by staff psychiatrist.
Completed a U paperwork required, including intake/assessment, service pbn development and
implementatioo,referrals, discharge pbnnhg, and nnancialraanagcmeitl.

EDUCATION, MEMBERSHIPS, AND CERTIFICATIONS:

Unrverstty of Southern Maine - BSW to be completed in 2022
Hobrook Jr. Sr. High School, Hobrook, MA - HS Dipbroa • Graduated 1995
American Mensa • Member- 2009* Current

MHRT/C

ACRE Certified

Work and Benefits Navigator
Progressive Empbymeni



Lisa Garcia mmmmmmmmmmmm
Persooal Qualities

^ Focused and results-oriented; able to identify goals, prioritize and resolve.
Proactive and flexible in challenging and changing environments.
Proficient in Microsoft Office (including Word, Excel, Access, Power Point, and Outlook)

4* High energy and enthusiastic.
^ Self-motivated and confident in making independent decisions.
^ Highly dqjcndable, and ethical.

Professional Accomplishments
Fuel and Electric Assbtance Manager June 2022 - present
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County
Responsible for day the day-to-day operations and management of the Fuel and Electric Assistance Program,
including planning, implementation, monitoring, and reporting. Responsible for creating and maintaining
procedures to successfully process and certify applications through excellent customer service and application
process times. Ensure that wc are servicing our community in an cfTecdve manner scheduling outreach
activities to Increase the visibility of our programs by going into the community to enroll clients, offer
increased appointment times in office and creating flyers for locations throughout communities in Strafford
County. Oversee staff including schedules, reviews, and development. Empower team to create trainings,
procedures, and documentation to get lo best practices and encourage an environment of teamwork and
accountability. Keep accurate records to ensure program monitoring guidelines arc met. Creating relationships
with CAPSC community, partners, and vendors to better serve our clients. Work with other departments to
work towards a whole family approach. Participate in discussions pertaining to the Fuel and Electric.Programs
and other programs that will be implemented in the future. Attend alt trainings offered to continue learning.

Billing Spcdalist Dec 2021 - May 2022
Community Action Partnership of Strafford County Non-profit
Work with fuel vendors to manage and pay invoice for enrolled clients through the fuel assistance program.
Manage all documentation for Vendor agreements and W-9 documents for landlords. Manage all
documentation for invoices and payments to adhere to State monitoring requirements. Manage CAP fuel
vendor mailbox to ensure all billing issued are resolved in a timely manner. Manage Gifl of Warmth program,
using multiple systems to complete payments. Send monthly unexpended reports to vendors to maximize
beoefil usage. Send notification letters to clients, vendors, and landlords as clients are enrolled. Created
relationships with vendors, fuel team members, clients and others who work here at CAP to team what I con to
succeed in my role. Learning and using EmpowOr as a tool for research, uploading documents and retrieving
fuel inquiries for follow up. Created documentation of job processes to assist anyone if I am out of the office.
Assist with (he Weatberization team in a billing capacity learning many other systems in a short period of time
to competency and reliability.

Independent Contractor/Self Employed Feb 2019-Dec 2021
Personal Shopper-Instacart National Grocery Delivery Service
Using a mobile application to complete orders in a professional and timely manner, servicing customers with
knowledgeable and firiendly eogagement. Consistently meet deadlines and quality goals for accuracy and
timeliness based on metrics set within the app and input from customers. Resolving customer complaints with
professionalism.

IBody Therapeutic Massage Si Bodywork - co owner May 2020 - present
Small business owner managing all aspects of the business including customer service, marketing, product
inventory in studio and online, interviewing and hiring, payroll and working with clients to improve health.

Business Operations Coordinator October 2009 - May 2020



Cole Haan Global Lifestyle Brand
Responsible for dally organization of Business Operations/Allocations communications to support customer
service teams to include order allocation, master account data, pricing conditions and data analysis to resolving
issues. Back up for all international accounts to include managing the order backlog, making sure pricing is
correct and all customer requirements arc met. Work closely with iDtemational partners for weekly meetings
for training and working out concerns as needed.
Senior Customer Service Specialist
Cole Haan

Respoosible for managing over 100 diverse wholesale accounts with raulti>miilion>do]tar revenue. Back up
for all of Coic Haan retail order management to include stores and online inventory. Work closely with sales
team and account buyers to manage ail aspects of business from contract management to order processing,
pricing, allocation and delivery. Created business process documentation for multiple accounts. Proactively
streamlined processes to manage accounts more effectively. Worked with business operations team to manage
high volume of sales orders efficiently. Proficient in SAP, BW as well as account vendor sites to manage
orders. Communicate with multiple internal departments - Demand Planning, Credit, Finance, Distribution and
Shipping to ensure the needs of the accounts are met. Phone cue to service wholesale customer needs. Trained
new hires in all aspects of this position. Managed 828 website to include account set ups and training for rest

/  of the team. Initiated, organized and led team meetings as well as newsletters for internal clients.

Professional Development Assistant - temporary staff
Measured Progress Nationally Recognized Standardized Testing Firm

Februai7 2009 - October 2009

Provide support of all activities in the Professional Development Department. Work with state, district and
school contracts: statement of client services, request for invoice, product orders, materials requests, and
meeting preparation. Support of PD Specialists: create summaries from evaluations, materials preparation,
travel, research and document review and edits. Co-created proposal for PD conference. Support Director of
PD: organization of financial records, travel, scheduling, and systemic organization. Schedule, plan and
participate in meetings for contracts, PD newslener, awareness team and candidate Interviews, preparing
background informatioD, taking notes, contributing to discussion and following up on tasks.
Involved in company dodgeball and soflball teams as welt as the hiking club.

Research it AnatysU Assistant - temporary staff November 2008- February 2009

Measured Progress. Edit and format post-test technical reports using Microsoft Word and Excel. Gather data from
multiple departments and manipulate it for placement into document tables.

Quality Assurance Assistant - temporary staff October 2008 - November 2008

Measured Progress. Tested and reviewed on-line lestiog program for academic standardized test. Reported on
errors in the text and troubleshot in the computer application. Updated tracking sheet the problems that needed
to be addressed.

Education

1996 Associate of Applied Science irt Business, (with honors)
1987 - 1989 Business course work

1987 High School Graduate

University of New Hampshire
Bismarck Community College, ND

Bismarck High School, ND

Elected Selectmen, Dover, NH
Election volunteer, Dover, NH
United Way Day of Caring

US Army Reserves
Home St School, Dover, NH

Military and Volunteer Service
2021 election

since 2020

sinee 2009

1992-2000

Parent/Teacher Organization Fundraiser Chair



Heidi Clongh

Snmmory of Qoalincations A self-molivntcd individual with strong work cthic, attention to detail, time
management, communication, interpersonal; and organizational skills. Used working in a fast-paced office
environrnent and possesses the ability to work collaboratively with others as well as independently. Proficient in
Microsoft Office, Ofrice36$- Outlook. OneDrive, SharePoint. also familiar with Teams and Zoom.

Professional Experience

July 2020- Present -Community Action Partnership of Strajford County- Fuei and Electric
Assistance Interim Manger

•  P'wt. direct and coordinates Community Action Partnership ofStrafford County Fuel and Electric
Assistance programs, including fuel and electric assistance, food pantries and other related programs.

• M^age, full time and seasonal Outreach staff, providing direction and guidance on the content of work
and overseeing the quality and scope of programs.

• Oversee policies regarding participant involvement, program requirements and benefit determination.
•  Preparing and submitting weekly and monthly reports for the Fuel and Electric programs.

November 2003 - Jufy 2020 - Community Action Partnership o/SiraJTord County- Outreach
Speeialist/USDA Coordinator Dover^ ffH

• Strives to provide effective, efficient, and compassionate customer service.
• Provides education and referral for programs in and outside of CAP.
• Finalizes accurate applications, ensuring they are complete with supporting documents
• Certifies eligibility for various programs
• Partners closely with fuel companies, firewood vendors, and utilities companies.
• Ability to index and retrieve data on paper and/or electronically.
• Meintaiiu security for private and confidential information.
' Gathers inventory from USDA food pantries, kitchens, and homeless shelter monthly.
• Executes a quarterly report for USDA review.
• Conducts a monthly review of USDA allocations to determine bimonthly food allotments agency.
• Coordinates agencies of pickup times and place for their bimonthly allotments.
• Work within the FA? database inpuRlng bills and printing checks.
• Began as a I^ptionist and promoted through positions of increasing responsibility (Receptionist
Intake Specialist, Billing, Certifier /USDA coordinator. Outreach Specialist

5m Business Science/Compuier Applications (Mcintosh College - Dover,NH) Certifittto: Motivational interviewing Basic, Safe Food Handling, updated MS Office applications,
workplace Violence: Prevention. Safety & Survival, Connecting through communication Basics



Cassandra Martin
Customer service

I have worked in customer service for 20 plus years Soiving customer issues and Increasing overall
customer satisfaction.! enjoy working within the community and have compassion and empathy for
each person's personal situation. I am confldent in my ability to adjust my actions of behaviors as
needed, and consider myself adaptable to.all situations. Thank you for your time in reviewing my
resume. I know i can bring value to your organiratlon and would love the chance to discuss how my
experience and skills can contribute to your company.

.Authorized Co work In the US for any employer

Work Experience-

Taxi Driver

Thomas Tax Service - Saint Aibans. VT

june 2016 to June 2022

Transportation and delivery services. Dispatch and answer customer calls, collect payments. Schedule
clients.

Sales Associate

Advantage rental • Saint Aibans. VT
July 2005 to May 2016

Customer sales, service, management, accounts payable and receivable, arrange furniture on the
showroom floor, delivered furniture, appliances, electronics. Reviewed potential customer applications
and checked references. Faxed and copied paper work, filed customer contracts and applications.
Answered phones, greeted customers.

Education

High school diploma or GED In General Studies
Bellows Free Academy Uh$d#48 • HIghgate. VT
August 2002 to June 2006

Skills

• Load & Unload

• Delivery Driver Experience

• Accounts Receivable

• Accounts Payable

• Account Reconciliation



• GenerBi Ledger Accounting

• Driving

• Payroll

• Data Entry

• Pricing

• Customer service

Certifications and Licenses

Driver's License

Assessments

Workplace English — Expert
October 2020

Understanding spoken and written English in work situations

Full results: Expert

Indeed Assessments provides skills tests that are not indicative of a license or certification, or continued

development in any professional DelU.


